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To be an excellent organization in offering a wide range
of compensations to patients with pneumoconiosis
and/or mesothelioma, providing quality rehabilitation
care to the patients for enhancing their physical
condition, and, developing and implementing
preventive measures for striving to minimize the
occurrence of these diseases among the workforce in
the construction and quarry industries.

BNRASHAEE - AEARERAERR JMA
AR RSV - EE R ERRT AR
SR - ARSI TR - HRRERER
BN KA S LERRRORE -




MISSION
i€ on

To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation
and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the
betterment of the patients, the workforce in the industries as
well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the statutory
functions in a professional and caring manner through:

utilizing effectively the resources collected from the
construction and quarry industries in accordance with
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the physical
condition of the patients;

implementing educational and publicity programmes to
raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals and
trainees in the industries as well as the public at large on
the prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate them in
strengthening prevention works;

building an occupational health culture among practitioners
in the industries;

providing medical examination programme for construction
workers;

supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment
and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and

maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-oriented
staff.

CODE OF ETHICS

practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity,
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism and
diligence.
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The Committee on Finance and Administration is responsible for
monitoring the finance, administration and investment affairs of
the Board. In 2021, although the COVID-19 epidemic persisted
and continued to adversely affect the economy of Hong Kong, the
Board had exercised extra monitoring and control on its financial
position to ensure it remained stable and healthy.

Total levy income in 2021 increased by 1.88% to $365.14 million
when compared with the value of $358.40 million in last year.
The levies from the public sector increased by 8.80% to $189.38
million, whereas that from the private sector decreased by 4.72%
to $175.43 million. On the other hand, levies from the quarry
industry increased from $0.23 million to $0.33 million.

Due to the epidemic and the downturn of the global and local
economies as well as the financial market, interest rates from fixed
deposits and yields from bonds and certificate of deposits dropped
drastically. Excluding fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (Tracker Fund), total investment income
was $32.16 million, which showed a significant decrease of
$30.06 million or 48.31% compared with $62.22 million of last
year. The interest income of bonds and fixed deposits decreased
notably by 62.82% or $29.75 million to $17.61 million. In 2021,
the Board approved to increase the tenure of fixed deposits from
normally one year to three years in order to generate relatively
higher interest incomes. Furthermore, the dividend income slightly
decreased from $14.86 million to $14.55 million in 2021.

On the total expenditure, it increased by 11.22% to $309.47
million. Total compensation of $226.47 million to pneumoconiosis
and mesothelioma patients under various items showed an
increase of $17.37 million or 8.31% from 2020.

Moreover, a total of $54.08 million was spent for prevention,
research and rehabilitation, which was $14.41 million or 36.32%
more than 2020. The increase was partly due to the larger
number of rehabilitation exercises taken by patients in community
rehabilitation centres and the rise in number of workers being
examined by the Medical Surveillance Programme during the
months with the epidemic receding.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021
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To sum up, $287.06 million or 92.76% of the total expenditure
of the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination,
research, prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients
and workers.

Besides, a total of $0.73 million was spent for information
technology fulfilling the maintenance and recurrent needs of the
Board. Another sum of $0.77 million was spent for hardware
which was capitalised as fixed assets.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $44.01
million, which was $100.14 million or 69.47% less than the
previous year. The balance of accumulated fund as at end of the
year was $2,931.28 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus
funds would be placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed
deposits at short to long-term fixed rates in order to ensure a
relatively stable interest income. The certificate of deposits and
bonds will be held to maturity, while the remaining 15% of the
surplus funds were invested in listed shares and the Tracker Fund
for dividend income and long-term investment purposes. In 2021,
in view of the epidemic, the global and local financial markets
were very volatile, and thereby increasing the risk of investment.
The Committee continued to closely monitor the investment
portfolios.

In June 2021, the Board submitted its annual report in 2020 for
tabling in the Legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2022 were
also submitted in December 2021 for approval by the Government
in accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO).

As the authorised paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia
Fund (“the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund’s interim and
final reports together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 which were audited by the Director of Audit
and approved by the Government.

The Committee sincerely thanks Members for their extra efforts
and contributions in steering the finance, administration and
investment affairs of the Board
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The overall levy income in 2021 was increased by 1.88% to
$365.14 million. The private sector had a decrease of 4.72% to
$175.43 million (2020: $184.12 million). The public sector had
an increase of 8.80% to $189.38 million versus $174.06 million
in the previous year.

The Board recorded $9.44 million of levy income from MTR
projects, indicated a 27.88% drop from the previous year of
$13.09 million. With only one quarry site operating in Hong Kong,
the levy income from quarry industry increased from $0.23 million
to $0.33 million.

The construction projects at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $36.66 million,
an increase of $3.33 million from $33.33 million in 2020,
representing a rise of 9.99%. Levy income from projects in the
West Kowloon Cultural District slightly increased from $3.24
million to $3.35 million, representing an increase of 3.40%.

On 17 March 2021, a resolution was passed at the Legislative
Council. With effect from 15 April 2021, the levels of five
compensation items were revised. The amount of monthly
compensation for pain, suffering and loss of amenities increased
from $5,330 to $5,660. The amount of compensation for
bereavement and the minimum amount of compensation for death
increased from $220,000 to $233,440. The maximum amount
of funeral expenses increased from $87,330 to $92,670, and the
amount of monthly compensation for care and attention increased
from $5,600 to $5,750.

The number of new cases recorded in 2021 was 93, including
67 Silicosis, 19 Mesothelioma, six Asbestosis cases and one case
suffered from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma. The number of
patients receiving monthly compensation at year end decreased
from 1 433 in2020to 1412 in 2021.

The total expenditure of compensation was $226.47 million,
representing an increase of 8.31% as compared with $209.10
million in 2020.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

During the Annual Interview with our patients, the Board conducted
a survey on patients’ level of satisfaction on the Compensation
Services. The average score with “satisfied” or “very satisfied”
given by patients was increased from 95.8 in 2020 to 96.9 out of
the total score of 100.

Lastly, sincere thanks were given to all the Committee members for
their contributions in the areas of Levy and Compensation.
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The Committee on Research is committed to financing and
working closely with academics and industries’ stakeholders for
conducting promising and practical projects. Working towards its
target, the Committee had another fruitful year in 2021, and the
following table summarises our work. The total expenditure spent
on research in 2021 was $3.22 million, showing an increase of
about $595,000 as compared with 2020.

TN
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Types of project Number 15 B 5l HA
New projects approved 3 TR E 3
New projects declined 5 #4518 B 5
Project completed 1 FERIEE 1
Projects in progress 6 HITHIER 6

In order to fund the topmost projects so as to bring the highest
values to our patients and the stakeholders, the Committee adopts
a rigorous and meticulous approach in vetting proposals. The
Committee approved a variety of three projects with different
focuses this year. Among these projects, two focused on
mesothelioma with different angles and one targeted for providing
better care to our silicosis patients.

The approved project conducted by Dr Khoo Bee Luan from
the City University of Hong Kong (CityU), titled “Enrichment of
Epithelial Mesothelioma Cell Clusters for Early Detection and
Routine Monitoring of Patients Using Liquid Biopsy” focuses on
the diagnostic method of mesothelioma. At present, although a
variety of diagnostic techniques are available, due to low clinical
suspicion of the disease, the final diagnosis is sometimes delayed.
For complementing the standard diagnostic procedures, this study
aims for developing a low-cost and non-invasive tool for early-stage
detection. The Board started to launch a Medical Surveillance
Programme in 2011 for encouraging construction workers to
receive regular chest examinations. If a reliable early detection
method could be developed, we can incorporate this into our
surveillance programme so that in the future workers with asbestos
exposure history could receive regular examinations for possible
early detection of mesothelioma.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021
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This year, the Committee also supported a project titled
“Investigation of gold drug candidates as immunomodulating
agents for the treatment of malignant pleural mesothelioma”
proposed by Dr Maria Babak from the CityU. As it was shown
recently that more favorable prognosis of the malignant pleural
mesothelioma (MPM) patients was associated with the activated
immune response, Dr Babak proposed the usage of novel
gold-based anticancer drug candidates with immunomodulating
properties for the treatment of aggressive MPM. With positive
preliminary results showing that the use of these gold complexes
could bring efficient immunogenic cancer cell death, we hope the
study could eventually bring an advancement in MPM treatment.

According to our records, more than 95% of our patients are
silicosis patients. Although silicosis remains incurable, the
Committee hopes to bring better treatment methods to our
patients. The Committee decided to fund Dr Chua Song Lin from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University to conduct a project titled
“Targeting biofilm-based bacterial infections in silicosis”. In the
first phase of this study, the researcher would reveal the role
of biofilms in silicosis patients and characterize the underlying
mechanisms driving biofilm formation in patients’ lungs. If the
project findings could reveal the mechanism of bacterial infections
via biofilm formation in silicosis patients, the key bacterial genes
could possibly serve as the future antibacterial targets, which in
turn can improve therapeutic treatment for silicosis patients.

In addition to the above, there were a total of six projects in
progress and another one was completed during the year. Prof
Shelly Tse from the Chinese University of Hong Kong completed
her project titled “Sleep Deprivation, Circadian Disruption and
Mild Cognitive Impairment among Patients with Silicosis in Hong
Kong”. The study provided the first epidemiological evidence on
cognitive function, sleep pattern and circadian activity rhythm
in workers with pneumoconiosis that have never been reported.
Pneumoconiosis patients were found to have a poorer cognitive
function, poorer sleep quality and weakened circadian activity
rhythm than that of the general population who had similar age and
educational attainment. The study shed light on pneumoconiosis
patients’ physical conditions and how to further improve their
caring strategies.

For all the advancement brought by our research work, the
Committee on Research would like to thank members for their
professional advice given in these years. The Committee will
continue the hard work on researches aiming to bring practical
and significant benefits to our patients as well as the other
stakeholders.

ZEGRFNMBBBREDFEUNARELE
Bl 2R HARESHREBENERR
ERASEEE B M MEREE | WIEE © HFH
MRS - BIEIRE K B & E BTN TRAE
BERERDHELRREGR ANEEREL
REAARRRASHFUEN S S TUEREZEY R
SARBMRREKE - ERATHMECEREL
SEEAMREARERRRRITEARIET - &
SeMERAMERKERTIIREEERN A
BnRER

REESREENCE  MAETEBIS% KK
FiRRmA o QLR IR IR R TADER Z RS
BTHEHETHRARLHRE - ZERRBREN
TEBETIAZEMRBLET BEAR[ER
WA AR RREANMAT] ZHE - it
HE R ERBRHERIBTAREMERY HREA
EEZTE  LRHHAREEMRN R AR
PREVHE I - I8 B BERKIH BRI R Ffs A 48
EAEYRZK M SR ARBEROES  EEEW
AMAERRKRKEA AR RNELER - femk
ZWHRANRRAE

Br LAl RIEE - RFEANEEE EEETT
A —EBEEBRERNFATK - thIEBBEESD
XABHIBHRET AR [ BHEYIHHEARE
AT EREEZEMNMEERAEENHE]
I E R IR E R AR RAT 8 - IR
BAREREBHRIELBBORITRERE
3 3538 i BRI & s R A LR iR M B A2 R AR
B —MREERAELL - ERAINEE  BEREEZRER
ABERYRE - W RERRTIMERTER
BENERNN - BOE—THERANRER

i

HRALAREESHRNER  ZEERHARE
BZFRARENEXER - REGEERHR
HEEBS T BN ARAREMEFNESRE
BREL 255 -

MERIEFRBEESRESE 2021 FFK

[T

13



i

14

With the alleviation of the COVID-19 epidemic in 2021, it is our
pleasure to report that most rehabilitation services provided by
the Board maintained normal operation during the year. Through
the dedication of the Committee in the year, the Board was able
to maintain a well-structured framework for providing diversified
while tailor-made services to the cohort of 1 438 patients.

Total expenditure spent on rehabilitation was $27.82 million
in 2021, representing an increase of $11.69 million compared
with 2020, and this was mainly due to the resumption of
the rehabilitation services in 2021. The Committee has been
dedicated to upholding the commitment and devotion to providing
high-quality rehabilitation programmes to our patients and
caregivers. We are glad to share in this report these programmes
and their results during the year.

Entering the second year of operation for Ruttonjee Hospital and
Haven of Hope Hospital, together with the commencement of
service provided by North District Hospital in December 2020,
the pulmonary rehabilitation programme in cooperation with the
Hospital Authority (HA programme) started its full-scale operation
in 2021, covering all pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma patients
in the territory. During the year, 304 patients, who were frail and
in need of rehabilitation services, were referred to this programme.
A total of 3 118 service sessions have been provided to patients by
the professional teams composed of respiratory physicians, nurses,
physiotherapists and occupational therapists. The Committee is
grateful to learn that the responses of patients having received the
services were mostly positive.

Another group of patients with better physical conditions continued
to receive support and care through our Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation (CCR) Programme. Same as the HA programme, the
CCR programme returned to normal operation during most time
of the year. During the year, 105 patients (2020: 31) completed
the preliminary assessment in Adventist Hospital-Tsuen Wan,
and the accumulated numbers of patients having completed
Phase 2 and Phase 3 increased to 658 and 469 (2020: 519 and
231) respectively. In 2021, 316 patients (2020: 249) joined
the exercise sessions for at least one time, and a total of 16 874
(2020: 4 850) exercise sessions have been arranged for patients,
which was a record high number since inception in 2017. The
average number of sessions that a patient attended per month
also bounced back to 5.99 sessions in 2021 compared with 4.09
sessions in 2020. In general, the Committee is delighted to see
that the CCR programme has received overwhelming support from
the patients, helping them develop regular exercise habits and
improve their health condition.
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Physical health is certainly important to our patients but
maintaining psychological and social health in the rehabilitation
process is equally crucial to them. Through a tendering process
in 2020, the Board commissioned a charitable institution to
provide social and psychological support services to patients with
psychological and social problems. During 2021, 250 cases have
received a total of 1 613 home visits attended by professional
social workers, and eventually 595 referrals were made for
patients and/or their carers, providing them with appropriate
support and services. To effectively monitor the progress of
patients and carers, different assessment tools have been put in
place. Service users were required to complete these assessments
every 6 months. Patients’ assessment results in this year were
in general satisfactory. For instance, among 160 patients who
have completed the assessments, 64% and 58% of them showed
improvement in Geriatric Depression Scale and Rasch Scale
questionnaires respectively, while 19% and 24% had ratings in
the respective scale reflecting that their depression and loneliness
did not worsen. Social workers in the team were able to establish
strong rapport with patients and carers. They have become a
reliable source for seeking necessary assistance.

As pneumoconiosis is a chronic disease, carers play an important
role in enhancing both the physical and psychological health of
patients in the rehabilitation process. It is agreed that the care
and support given by carers would contribute much to improving
patients’ conditions. In 2021, the “Social Support Programme”
continued to offer comprehensive service to patients and carers
as a whole. The majority of 97 carers receiving home visits got
positive or stable results in assessments. In addition to the home
visit services, a series of five carers’ workshops with six sessions
each have been arranged in different districts, which helped
alleviate the burden of the carers and in turn benefited the
patients in their families.

To reach out to more patients of different spectrums, the
Committee continued to fund other rehabilitation projects through
the sponsorship scheme. During the year, 30 sessions of education
talks and gatherings were arranged, with a total of 453 attendance.
Apart from learning useful information on management of the
disease and development of a healthy life style, patients could also
expand their social circles in these gatherings, thereby developing
mutual support among the group.
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To conclude, the Committee would like to express our heartfelt &% ZE@ROBIAESZENER W © LT
gratitude to our members for materialising all the above work.  {EfSIAERIETT « & B & MBI TEHRTTHER
With the objective of striving for continuous improvement to FEIEZAREF - BCRRERRS LR TR
the rehabilitation programmes, the Committee will continue to 7R BEARHELNERER -

enhance existing rehabilitation programmes and also explore new

initiatives to provide the best possible rehabilitation services to our

patients.

N

A professor from a university’s School of Nursing and Health Studies conducted a talk on respiratory care.

— BN N 2 RSB HUR AR A BRI R AT e

A seminar on health care in hot summer was conducted by a registered Chinese medicine practitioner.

M B TR AR ERET R LB -
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The mascot “Dusty Boy”, introduced by the Board in 2021, has
become the highlight of our prevention programmes for further
encouraging the stakeholders of the construction industry as well
as the general public to foster their work on the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma. Thanks to the innovative and
professional input of Committee members, the “Dusty Boy” was
able to build a positive and impressive image in the society. While
the Board always attaches great importance to prevention work, we
attempted a new light-hearted approach to raise public awareness
of preventing pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma.

In 2021, the Committee continued conducting and financing
education and publicity programmes to promote the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma. As the COVID-19 epidemic
was relatively stable in 2021, the Committee could launch several
prevention programmes during the year. The total expenditure
spent on prevention in 2021 was $23.05 million, showing an
increase of $2.13 million when compared with $20.92 million
spent in 2020. We will spare no effort to continue our education
and publicity work.

In order to encourage small and medium-sized enterprises
engaged in the construction, renovation and maintenance works
industries to use tools with dust collectors, the Board re-launched
the “Cordless Tools with Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme”
in December 2021. Eligible companies would receive subsidies
to purchase suitable cordless angle grinders with dust collectors.
It is hoped that this will help employers and workers understand
the importance of “dust reduction at source” in preventing
pneumoconiosis, and by using the dust reduction tools, their work
habits and environment could also be improved.

To achieve synergies, we continued to jointly organise the
“Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety
& Health Council, the Labour Department, the Department of
Health and the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board.
There were 15 applications received for the “Prevention of
Pneumoconiosis Award” in 2021. Special thanks were given to the
participating organisations for their contributions to the prevention
of pneumoconiosis. As long as we join hands together, we are
confident that a higher level of occupational safety and health in
the construction industry can be promoted, resulting in a better
working environment for workers.
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In addition to the above publicity programmes, the Board
sponsored trade unions and non-government organisations to
organise prevention programmes of different types and scales,
including talks related to the prevention of pneumoconiosis at
construction sites, seminars about the prevention of asbestosis
in the community, promotion booths for residents living in old
districts and other activities targeted at people of different races.
It is believed that by working together with different stakeholders,
the prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma message can
be delivered in a wider and deeper way.

Apart from organising various types of activities, the Committee
also launched promotion programmes in different media and
through various publicity channels this year. The “Dusty Boy” has
been meeting the public on TVB, Cable TV, Now TV, ViuTV, MTR
stations, bus stations, Facebook and YouTube. Additionally, the
radio announcements from “Dusty Boy” were also broadcasted
during the horse racing and financial programmes of Commercial
Radio | and Metro Radio.

The Committee also produced two series of special programmes
on TVB this year, including the first series in which Ir Allan Chan,
Chairman of the Board, Sr Eddie Lam and Mr Lawrence Cheung,
Chairman and member of the Committee, were interviewed for
introducing pneumoconiosis, relevant preventive measures as
well as correct procedures for dismantling construction materials
which contain asbestos. In the second series, we explained to
the audience how to reduce dust at source and the importance
of selecting and wearing a suitable mask properly by conducting
simple experiments. The Board would like to express sincere
thanks to Professor Samuel Yu, Director of Health, Safety and
Environment Office of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and Professor Tsin Tai Wa, Adjunct Assistant Professor
of The Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care
of The Chinese University of Hong Kong for their assistance
in designing and conducting the experiments in the above
programmes.

As for occupational health, a total of 3 489 construction workers
benefited from the “Medical Surveillance Programme” in 2021. By
taking regular physical examinations, not only could construction
workers detect chest-related problems and receive early treatments
as soon as possible, but they could also have a higher alert on the
occupational diseases and hence practice the prevention measures
in their daily work.
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Hih &S

Finally, the Committee would like to extend our heartfelt
appreciation to all the stakeholders, who have dedicated
themselves to fostering occupational health and safety culture
in the construction industry, especially on the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma during the year. Note of
gratitude is also extended to our members whose tireless efforts
have facilitated the launching of various programmes. With the
concerted efforts of all of us, we firmly believe that the industry’s
concern on pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma will be further
enhanced.
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To the members of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board
(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”) set out on pages 26 to
68, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in funds and reserves and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2021,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board members for the
financial statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control
as the Board members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board members either intend to liquidate the Board or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

20 June 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #ZE 2021412 A31 BIHFEE CAETHIR)

Notes
BRE

REVENUE LN

Levy income EENON 4

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS) HftiBAR s (&18)

Bank interest income RITFIEIA

Interest income on debt investments iRk A AT & 2 BIEIRE 2 F
at amortised cost B

Dividend income from listed BEEMESMERERA
securities

Ex-gratia fund administration charge RESELFFKEZ ITHE R
received

Penalty on late payments of levies — FEIEAEGERPTUE Z E15K

Sundry income FETRMA

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial BARBEABR SREE
assets at fair value through profit AR EEKE(EE)
or loss

EXPENDITURE X i

Operating and administrative BERITHAY ¢
expenditures
Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma fBEEIR)N &k M B B E

compensations

Project expenses EEEa
Employee benefit expenses BB REFRAX Q)
Administrative expenses THEX 6
Medical examination fees FIEER 7
Depreciation e 9
Amortisation of intangible assets | EERE 10
Capital expenditure BRI

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR FERH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ E#:2mEW %~ (&E)
(LOSS)

Fair value gain/(loss) on equity EFERANBEFAEMEE
investments designated at fair Wk Z AR E 2 A ABE
value through other comprehensive z5, (E518)
income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2F2mEWK=4E%E
FOR THE YEAR

S\ \nlﬂ/
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2021

365,137,228

17,231,436
378,137
14,549,203

138,429
224,425
3,734

(44,179,620)

(11,654,256)

(226,473,545)
(54,083,072)
(18,286,080)

(2,456,151)
(6,498,730)
(705,518)
(223,833)

(745,725)
(309,472,654)

44,010,318

9,235,309

53,245,627

2020

358,404,227

36,820,728
10,542,275
14,859,303

138,933
148,842
1,433

1,466,325

63,977,839

(209,100,275)
(39,670,614)
(18,348,663)

(2,085,271)
(6,989,310)
(1,130,177)
(214,033)
(698,255)

(278,236,598)

144,145,468

(48,099,798)

96,045,670




31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2021412 B 31 B (LUBTHIR)

Notes 2021 2020
P EE $ $

NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - MBS MR 9 21,246,964 21,182,572
Intangible assets EAE 10 453,464 677,297
Debt investments at amortised cost Iz ARG E 2 EEIRE 11 100,000,000 —
Equity investments designated at BEEREAABEF AL MEZE

fair value through other W as 2 AL E

comprehensive income 12 149,081,411 139,274,575
Financial assets at fair value BARBESAEBGZSREE

through profit or loss 13 267,810,480 311,990,100
Time deposits with original maturity RE#E:@=1EAE2H

of more than three months EHFER 15 457,794,356 —
Total non-current assets B EELRE 996,386,675 473,124,544
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable FEBE TR 14 16,739,402 16,178,435
Interest receivables FEUF) B 5,177,139 16,867,438
Prepayments and deposits BNRERES 89,924 99,473
Advance payment for compensation FEX#F{ES 72,468 72,468
Debt investments at amortised cost &z sSRANEHE 2 ERIRE 11 — 14,996,409
Time deposits with original maturity RE#BB=1E7%3H>

of more than three months TFEHFER 15 1,947,325,117 2,383,273,580
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 16 37,942,609 43,482,975
Total current assets TRENE E 4R 2,007,346,659  2,474,970,778
CURRENT LIABILITY REBAR
Accruals and other payables FEET F0IB I B A e 5B 17 10,357,801 7,965,106
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEESE 1,996,988,858 2,467,005,672
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARSE

LIABILITIES 2,993,375,5633 2,940,130,216
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREBEE
Provision for long service payments EHIfRS S BE 18 106,901 107,211
Net assets BERE 2,993,268,632 2,940,023,005

MERNEFRHEESZES 2021 FF1K
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Bl F5 R =

31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2021412 A31 B (LUETTHIR)

Notes 2021 2020

BRE $ $
FUNDS AND RESERVES HEERf#E
Accumulated fund RIEES 19 2,931,279,548 2,882,501,717
Research fund hEES 19 10,541,774 11,759,334
Prevention fund EFES 19 18,372,292 21,420,837
Rehabilitation fund ERES 19 913,829 1,255,796
Computer systems fund ERESES 19 453,464 677,297
Capital reserve BN 19 21,246,964 21,182,572
Investment reserve REEE 19 10,460,761 1,225,452
Total funds and reserves Ee MEeE 2,993,268,632  2,940,023,005
Sr LAM Kin Wing, Eddie MR SR E AP
Chairman (2022-23) E/E (2022-23)

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board

Annual Report 2021




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

BERREZME

Year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z 2021412 A 31 BIFFE (AETHIR)

Funds and
reserves
HeR#E
$

Balance at 1 January 2020

R202051 A 1 B#sk

2,843,977,335

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

EEERR

Hit2HER
BARBEFAREMEZEEGEZ
EMEEZANBEREE

144,145,468

(48,099,798)

Balance at 31 December 2020 and at
1 January 2021

R2020F12831HK
202151 A1 B#&8

2,940,023,005

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Hitt2mE S
BARBEFARMEZEKSEZ
eRMEEZAABEYSE

44,010,318

9,235,309

Balance at 31 December 2021

M20215 12 31 &

2,993,268,632

MERNEFRHEESZES 2021 FF1K
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Year ended 31 December 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
and net cash flows from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from redemption of debt
investments at amortised cost
Proceeds from disposals of equity
investments designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Purchases of debt investments at
amortised cost
Purchases of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Increase in time deposits with
original maturity of
more than three months
Interest received
Dividends received

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RE&£RERESZEY
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH HREeRASEZEEBYERDT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances W& RIRITRES
Y Y T |

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021

EETHRERE

BEEEZ RS REE
Ly

REFBHRERE

BREZE EP AN A B 2 BT

RE SRR

HERER AR EEBTAEM
RS BRREZ

P{S30R

BAREHRAEZERRE

BARRAREEFTABREZ

TREE

BAME - S MREEE

NEEBWEE

[REB=1E LR Z

T BF I I

WER AL
W ER B B

RERBFARSMEFE

RERBASEEYZ

EiEm OB

NEN 2R e MRS EEY

Notes
MIsE

20(a)

12

11

16

2021

58,797,889

15,000,000

(100,000,000)

(769,910)

(21,845,893)
29,299,872
13,977,676

(64,338,255)

(5,540,366)

43,482,975

37,942,609

37,942,609

HZE2021F12 A31 BIEFE GABTIIR)

2020

91,021,336

770,000,000

7,776,075

(86,295,100)
(173,510)
(78,400)

(824,851,673)
50,278,216
14,292,736

(69,051,656)

21,969,680

21,513,295

43,482,975

43,482,975



Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”)
is established with a role as a compensation body, and to
engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research
in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered
office is 15/F Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
(Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (the “Ordinance”) on 9 July
1993, all those pneumoconiotics who were compensated
by the Board between 1 January 1981 and 8 July
1993 can make an application to the Board to receive
further compensation and other payments under the new
compensation scheme. After re-assessment is made by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board and approval granted, the
applicant will receive monthly payments of compensation in
respect of the difference between the degree of incapacity
determined by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board on the
re-assessment and the degree of permanent incapacity
previously determined by the Board under the Ordinance
prior to its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from
pneumoconiosis receive monthly payments of compensation
instead of a lump-sum compensation. The Board’s liability
to compensation arises when an applicant is assessed
by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering
from pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the
residency requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance was amended to include provisions to provide
compensation to persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance has been renamed as the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance. Applicants who
are assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to
be suffering from mesothelioma are subject to the same
eligibility criteria and payment of compensation as applicants
suffering from pneumoconiosis.

Y —— 111 |
) )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIIR)

RN ERHBEREZE S (A THEIE
TEEGDZKRYL FT2AFAMMER
MERZHESHER2RBBMZRIER
B EMAEETE E2RBG2MERT
b AEE LR 1485 B MITA
E15%& -

(1993 PRI E R (i {E) (ERT) 1B
AT RREI 5P D 1993F7 A9 R AR -
Pl BAFT B R 198141 A1 H £1993
F7TASHNHERRESRE %’%WQZHFE
BRNERBE  HUMESZTEERFEN
AFTRERE - FEEIEME o K ﬁﬂﬁ%
BERABGZESENHEREM]E &
HRASRESEIEH 2 RRTIFENEE
BARBAERT B Z IR PI A 2 K AR T HERE
NiEEMEZEE SHEBANGZHER
B e

H199347 A9HE  BLEMERNER
ZATRFAREEE - mIEE— Xt

o IRIRIED - R ERHIBEERES
#U*%Hﬁ@ﬁmér WELTRERHETE
BERRESTHROINESFTHETZRE

i< A

A IRERESZERIMHE -

2008%F 4 A18H » (FERNE K (HE)
EEIMER BN BREEBENARRE
1EBIEREZRA o (BRI &R (f1E)
16451 )4 58 IIAR B 52 R R b BB 3R U & i % P
IR PE (F1E) 1&651) - ERPERTERABGE
ECHEB FREBIZRA @ ERESER
B2 & R AT R (B A B St fih BE R &
RBETEAER o

L¥Y )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8] 55 ¥6 2% MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)
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On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance was further
amended to allow patients with pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma to seek treatment from registered Chinese
medicine practitioners and claim reimbursement of the
medical expenses and cost of medicines for the treatment of
pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to the maximum
amount of claims as prescribed in the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Board’s functional
currency.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Board has adopted the revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements, which are
applicable to the Board. The adoption of the revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bl 35 ¥h 2 bl 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

23 CHEMBEERERZERME

4 g

[ == e SN

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

RSB HREE BT BV ERR
FEREAERBEEARANEZ2021F12
A3l AL FEAERZ T REIERTE
B RE LR - ZERBVISHELELE
BRI R ARG EES R B S SR
FAEEEIIAT

The Board has not early applied any of the new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31 December 2021 in these
financial statements. Among these HKFRSs, the following are
expected to be relevant to the Board’s financial statements
upon becoming effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as HEgst AR BESERTE)
Current or Non-current® 3 ERRiwd ) LB 3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BEGETER BEHER . BFE?
and HKFRS Practice Policies? FLIREREE
Statement 2 fuprd el
B REE 25
pdCH)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BEG AR BiHEETCEE?
Estimates? EXLd
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets HEG R HEFFHE -G
and Liabilities arising from B 1252 185] ZEEREE
a Single Transaction? HE.Z BERE IR 2
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: HEgst 2R WFE - BAER
Proceeds before Intended F 165821857 B EHE
Use! FEFIZ TS
!
Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of BB GEH4ER EIEEH — BT
Fulfilling a Contract* FEI7HR2AEET B Z A
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, BB B BB RS LR
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative ERI2018 FF F15% - BEMB
Examples accompanying 2020%F.2 HEAERIE 5K
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41! FE BB @RS

ZERIIZE 16 SEBER
FHAROIREE
SEPERIE 415
ZIERT!
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

8 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

The Board is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Board'’s results of operations and financial position.

Fair value measurement

The Board measures its equity investments and investment
funds at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Board. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021

! 20224 1 A1 Bz &Gz FE
L3

2 202341 A1 Bk &Gz FEHH
L3

3 HABBEHEAE LK 2B B8R
BESRYBFHZZZS — BHAHH
BIZBEEEAZ FHEAZ 7 HER
20204 10 A#EITIERT - LAGE AR EFE AR
B—Bmim g

Ao ZE @R IEREREAZENT REE
R EBMIERE LR 2 EEITIE - D
REERETE LT RICERI B AU B RS %
Qg THES R B AEXARMBAN
BRERERTE -

NVEEE

EeZEENEREMRZARBEFER
B E RIEES - AAEBEEETER
ME2EEEETEFXINERILEEE
PUCER 2 BAR S L8R BB FT S 2 (B 1%
SEAAEER  RROEEEIERAE
ZRHREEFXAB I ETETHH (ELE
FTEMBZBERT) HEEKARSEANZ
MSET - TERXRANMEBARESERE
BRWBETNIS - ABEEHBBZIAR
EBERMAZER  EZMmE2EE (RERE
ENZELENGSTE) HEEXRBER
5 T R 2 R AR AR




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Board determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

Bl 35 ¥h 2 bl 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Y

(LAETTIIR)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Y T |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Board if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Board;
has significant influence over the Board; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Board or of a parent of the Board;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Board are members of the same
Board;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Board are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Board or an
entity related to the Board;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Board or to the parent of the Board.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bl 35 ¥h 2 bl 5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Board recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Properties 50 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 10 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Right-of-use asset
Land Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 50 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. All
leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognised
as assets representing the right of use of the underlying
asset and liabilities representing the obligation to make lease
payments, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

Both the assets and the liabilities are initially measured on a
present value basis. Right-of-use assets are recognised under
property, plant and equipment and are measured at cost or
valuation less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets
and the lease terms. Lease liabilities are initially measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made under the
lease terms and subsequently adjusted by the effect of the
interest on and the settlement of the lease liabilities, and the
re-measurement arising from any reassessment of the lease
liabilities or lease modifications.

\ﬂﬂnﬂ/

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

ME  BELREERB (BREFACDOSE
RZERFD)NHERHERRRTEE
EARHEHRIER M RABEN R &L
HER - REERIIBERFEERSRRZE
I HEREARE LB - RIFEEMSHIA
FRENEEEREEZZR -

B EE
BB B S AR AR A AR EE RS
fR o YIRABERAREMGFERFHF
EITH -

HE

&N R/BEDREE - REEAERCZR
BEMZHIE  MZANAHEELEEH
E - ERPERESRERCHMNEEME
HZ BRBD BN S B AR D BAE
EMRZE - EHAEET - FrAHE B
BT—EAZHESERSEE (RKREM
HEAEE 2B FaE(RERXNBEER
RZEME) RIFRREEREKEEEE

BEMABYSEBREE - EREEER
Y% - HEs R REIE THER - A AE
WERZEFHTERRERIEE - YtEE
BEZEMEHAEETHE - RAREEE
BESENEEZ EAFHHER (AR
BERE)NNE - HEAGNISIREER
RETHETEH 2 HENRZREFE - &
BUHEREMNEREERERBZZEN
kEBERENEMERFAIEEEETMm
EEZEMAEETHE

MERNEFRHEESZES 2021 FF1K

39



40

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Financial assets

Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financial
component or for which the Board has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financial
component are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. All
the other financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date when the Board commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, subject to
impairment if the assets are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows where those contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Interest income for these
financial assets is included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss unless, on initial recognition, the Board
has irrevocably elected to designate such investments
that are not held for trading as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Board’s right to receive payment
is established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never recycled to profit or loss even
when the assets are sold.
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(b)

Impairment

The Board applies the expected credit loss model on
all the financial assets that are subject to impairment.
For accounts receivable without a significant financial
component, the Board applies the simplified approach
which requires impairment allowances to be measured
at lifetime expected credit losses.

For other financial assets, impairment allowances are
recognised under the general approach where expected
credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Board is required to provide for credit losses that
result from possible default events within the next 12
months. For those credit exposures where there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Board considers a default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Board has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more appropriate default criterion
should be applied.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
where the Board has transferred its contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership; or where control is not retained.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8] 55 ¥6 2% MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are

extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Board’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Board. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a change

in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Income tax

The Board is exempted from Hong Kong profits tax under
Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Revenue recognition

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-gratia
fund administration charge are recognised when the Board
becomes entitled to them and it is probable that they will be
received.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Board and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Board provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting
period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Board operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Scheme”) and a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme. The Board’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. The vesting percentage of the Board'’s
employer contributions is in accordance with the employees’
years of service when contributed into the ORSO Scheme.
Forfeited contributions in respect of employees who leave the
Board before their contributions fully vest are available to the
other employees in the ORSO Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme are
held separately from those of the Board in an independently
administered fund.
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The preparation of the Board’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Board’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of debt investments at amortised cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
at amortised cost. This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Board determines
the appropriate business models and assesses the “solely
payments of principal and interest” requirements for financial
assets. The unlisted bonds and certificates of deposits were
classified as debt investments at amortised cost as the Board
has determined that the objective of holding the investments
is to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
The Board uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Board’s historical observed default rates.
The Board will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
construction sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Board’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Board’s accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing and
amount of any outflows.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher
degree of judgement than other types of provisions. When
matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements can be
difficult because of the high degree of uncertainty associated
with determining whether a present obligation exists, and
estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that
may arise. As matters progress, the Board members and legal
advisers evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions
should be recognised, revising previous judgements and
estimates as appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is
typically easier to make judgements and estimates around a
better defined set of possible outcomes. However, the amount
provided for can remain very sensitive to the assumptions
used. There could be a wide range of possible outcomes
for any pending legal proceedings. As a result, it is often
not practicable to quantify a range of possible outcomes for
individual matters. It is also not practicable to meaningfully
quantify ranges of potential outcomes in aggregate for
these types of provisions because of the diverse nature
and circumstances of such matters and the wide range of
uncertainties involved.

Private sector AL

Public sector NHETE
Mass Transit Railway BE TR
Port and Airport Development Scheme B0 L5 RETE
West Kowloon Cultural District mhBEX R
Others Hth

Quarry industry AiEsE

FRFDBREBRTEREMENBEBREEX
TRE 2 HIEr - R YIPHE RS - ALk
LMER &Rl - RABRREREFERE
WibFTAIRE R MEL Z EME R Z AT 8L
RS PREATHEEN - BEERME
R E2ZBeLEARBERERENG
ELHERE R - WEAFEREIELAED
Z R At o AR - BETURE
ST — PR EBRREM 2 AT REAERIEL
H R bR - A BEEELNESEE
FTABERNEE - HAFREEFREES
ERTREAER - Rtk - E(LERIRMA 2 — &5
AREAETRREALALT - ML EREAES
W Z AR 2 BEERELENLITTA
17 ARBERZEERBEREE TR

B REENHABERE -
2021 2020
$ $
175,426,365 184,115,138
9,439,006 13,088,474
36,659,212 33,334,041
3,352,120 3,240,239
139,930,348 124,401,055
330,177 225,280
365,137,228 358,404,227
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

48

In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and
schedule 5 in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis
and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate
was 0.25% on the value of (a) all construction operations
exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong and the
tender for which was submitted on or after 18 June 2000
and (b) on all quarrying products produced in Hong Kong with
effect from 18 June 2000. Effective 20 August 2012, the
levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value of (a) all
construction operations exceeding $1,000,000 undertaken
in Hong Kong and the tender for which was submitted on
or after 20 August 2012 and (b) on all quarrying products
produced in Hong Kong with effect from 20 August 2012.
Effective 30 July 2018, the levy threshold on construction
operations increased from $1,000,000 to $3,000,000.

RIB ST 2 PRI B R R R B (f
E)IEBIYEVIE D35 RH RSB E
BHEE0.25% * BAR (a) TEEABE
TM{E{E# B 1,000,000 7 &2ETIE
MEZEEZM 2000F6 5 18 B ABIERS
K (b) 200046 A 18 A K IA& &6 7
RZFEABEM - H201248H20H
H BEERARKE0.15%  BRAR (@) A
fEAR 1T M EEE 1B 1,000,000 7T 7 2
ETRR MEEZEN2012F8H 208 5
NBIER : K (b)201248 A 20 H & A
BEEARRMALREER - 820184
7HA30B#  HERETRZHBHMEES
1,000,000 7tem 2 3,000,000 TG °

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES % B i & B FIBE 2
2021 2020
$ $
Wages, salaries and allowances I8 - #4 &28y 17,073,879 17,046,058
Staff medical insurance B B B2 (R 195,807 180,589
Staff compensation insurance 1% B B E R 26,677 24,995
Pension scheme contributions BB ETEIHR
(defined contribution schemes) (RAEHKETE)
ORSO Scheme B R IRET B 577,066 599,182
MPF Scheme BEEETE 335,324 337,652
Provision for unutilised annual leave REAFE BB 77,327 160,187
18,286,080 18,348,663

No Board members received any fees or emoluments in
respect of their services rendered to the Board during the
year (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8] 55 ¥h 2% Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIIR)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 6. 1THREX
2021 2020
$ $
Auditor’ s remuneration ZE BN &
Audit services EZ RS 180,000 180,000
Other services H bR A 10,000 10,000
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of  FEUBRZCRIE,”
accounts receivable, net (note 14) Om(E#EE)
FEE(MIRE14) 131,235 (78,379)
Legal and professional fees FERREEER 945,395 563,964
Printing and stationery ENJRI K2 3 3% 105,674 122,235
Others EHih 1,083,847 1,287,451
2,456,151 2,085,271
MEDICAL EXAMINATION FEES 7. HEEH
Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable FIG B A AR ERCIHEE R & m & B E (i
to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative 8) 165 )EE 23 R 23A MK - B8N R AR
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by the NP EERFIITHRBNE BIER T ER
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Sections 23 and 23A HEZESMBELZHIGER -
of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance.
INCOME TAX 8. FisBifxX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is
exempted by virtue of Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

BENTENGHIIERE  RASESR
B RIBEB(BE D)) F88IkmER L -

MERNEFRHEESZES 2021 FF1K

49



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 55 ¥h 2% Bl 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9. Y% - HESKRRE
Right-
of-use
asset Owned assets
EREEE BEEE
Leasehold Computer
Land  Properties improvements  equipment Total Total
HENE
BRIE
1 S RELH ElRE b h
$ $ $ $ $ $
31 December 2021 2021%12R31H
At 31 December 2020 and at R2020E12R31BRK
1 January 2021: R2021F1A818:
Cost A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,478,494 23,640,594 30,495,926
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (83,696) (3,581,067) (5,109,410) (539,181)  (9,229,658) (9,313,354)
Net carrying amount FEFE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated 202141518
depreciation MBREFTE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
Additions NE — — — 769,910 769,910 769,910
Depreciation provided during the year FERENE (7971)  (341,054) = (356,493)  (697,547)  (705,518)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated 2021512 4311
depreciation MRZFTE 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483,299 21,246,964
At 31 December 2021: R2021E12R 318 :
Cost A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 2,248,404 24,410,504 31,265,836

Accumulated depreciation BiinE (91,667) (3,922,121) (5,109,410 (895,674)  (9,927,205) (10,018,872)
Net carrying amount FHFE 6,763,665 13,130,569 — 1,352,730 14,483,299 21,246,964
31 December 2020 2020512 31H
At 1 January 2020: W202061R18

Cost AR 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,304,984 23,467,084 30,322,416

Accumulated depreciation BiinE (75,725)  (3,240,013)  (4,598,469) (268,970)  (8,107,452) (8,183,177)

Net carrying amount REFE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated ~ R2020E1H18 -

depreciation MR ZHTE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239
Additions NE — — — 173,510 173,510 173,510
Depreciation provided during the year FERENE (7,971) (341,054) 510,941) (270,211)  (1,122,206) (1,130,177)
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated 7202012 8318 - o

depreciation MR25HE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939313 14410936 21,182,572
At 31 December 2020: R2020€12A318 :

Cost AR 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,478,494 23,640,594 30,495,926

Accumulated depreciation 2:E (83,69) (3,581,067) 5109,410)  (539,181) (9,229,658) (9,313,354)
Net carrying amount BEFE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10. B EE
Computer
software
EE
$
31 December 2021 20214 12A31H
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021: 72020412 431 H&KR2021F1A18 :
Cost BN 1,119,166
Accumulated amortisation REtEH (441,869)
Net carrying amount SREDFE 677,297
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated 72021491 818 @ fIkk BT
amortisation 677,297
Amortisation provided during the year FEREEN (223,833)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated 72021412 A31 8 - ik Rt
amortisation 453,464
At 31 December 2021: M2021412A31H :
Cost D% 1,119,166
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEE (665,702)
Net carrying amount REFE 453,464
31 December 2020 2020 12A31H
At 1 January 2020: 2020 F1A1H :
Cost AR 1,040,766
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (227,836)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 812,930
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated 7202041 A 18 - f0Bk 25T#kH
amortisation 812,930
Additions NE 78,400
Amortisation provided during the year FE R (214,033)
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated 12020412 A31 8 - ik RatEEH
amortisation 677,297
At 31 December 2020: #2020 12 A31 H :
Cost [D%N 1,119,166
Accumulated amortisation REEH (441,869)
Net carrying amount BREEE 677,297
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

11. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 11. ZZ#EHKATRB 2BEHIRE

2021 2020
$ $
Debt investments at amortised cost, WA AT R 2
at nominal value BFIRE @ REE
— Unlisted bond — EETES 100,000,000 15,000,000
Unamortised discounts REESHITRR — (3,591)
At amortised cost Y SE AR AN 100,000,000 14,996,409
Analysed into: DR
Non-current assets JEmBNEE 100,000,000 —
Current assets MENEE — 14,996,409
100,000,000 14,996,409
As at 31 December 2021, the Board's unlisted bond M2021F12A31H €L EE Ik L
investment was with a fixed interest rate of 0.565% per MEFREEFEFEFER0.565% R EHIA
annum and will mature in August 2024. 7202481 ©
As at 31 December 2020, the Board’s unlisted bond MR2020F12A31H8 - £&¢ZB8g ¥k
investment was with a fixed interest rate of 4.85% per MEHFREEEFMNER4.85% REIHA
annum and matured in March 2021. During the reporting R2021 437 - RWENMAN - E2ZEE
period, the Board redeemed the unlisted bond investment in B D R R BN B IE E T EHIRE -

full upon maturity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIIR)

considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

RZFREBRIEILRE -

12. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 12. 1 E EEREAABETTAHMEE
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER Wiz RARE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020
$ $

Listed equity investments, at fair value:  EMREARRE @ RAREE -
Hong Kong B 149,081,411 139,274,575
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at R E BN A BRI IR E AR ARE
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Board B AEMEEREZ REAESZEER

Details of the Board’s equity investments designated at fair AL EREERAABET AR MEEI
value through other comprehensive income are as follows: L RAIRE 2B

Dividend Dividend

income for income for

Fair value the year Fair value the year

as at ended as at ended

Stock 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Name of company code 2021 2021 2020 2020

R2021% BZ2021 % RH2020 % BZ2020%F

12A31H2 12B31H%E 12A31HZ 12A31B%E

AR EH RS AREE ZREKA ARER ZBREBA

$ $ $ $

CK Hutchison Holdings Ltd. &I BZEAR A R] 1 21,326,597 1,059,970 22,937,751 1,235,501

CLP Holdings Ltd. BIERAERLA 2 19,593,000 771,280 17,838,960 766,304

Hong Kong and China BEPEHRI[EGRAT]

Gas Co. Ltd. 3 12,411,074 918,145 11,274,832 896,681
HSBC Holdings plc ELIERARAT 5 25,832,520 942,105 22,445,100 —
Power Assets Holdings Ltd. EaeEZBR AR 6 8,772,300 509,010 7,581,000 505,400
Hang Seng Bank Ltd. B4 RIT R A A 11 19,021,910 813,130 17,822,210 893,110
Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd. ¥rig R EZRAR AR 16 21,285,000 1,113,750 22,500,000 1,113,750
Swire Pacific Ltd. KEBRHERAT 19 — — — 410,075
CK Asset Holdings Ltd. RIEXEEARAA 1113 20,839,010 792,858 16,874,722 814,057

149,081,411 6,920,248 139,274,575 6,634,878

fERNEFREEESZEE 2021 FF R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13.

14.

(LAETTIIR)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
sold its equity investment in Swire Pacific Ltd. as this
investment no longer aligned with the Board’s investment
strategy. The aggregated fair value on the dates of sale was
$7,776,075 and the accumulated losses recognised in other
comprehensive income of $253,850 were transferred to
accumulated fund.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed fund investments, at fair value:
Hong Kong EE

The above investments were classified as financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss as the Board has not

elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other

comprehensive income.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable
Impairment

JE YRR TR
AL

The credit period is 30 days. The Board seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
developed credit control policy to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Board does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021

13.

EHEERE  RAREE:

14.

NEZE2020F 12 A31HILFE - 4%
BB HEHERATRNERAT ZRAE
T RREAZERETHFTGESZEY
ZIRERE - HEEBAZANEBELSER
7,776,0757C * MEEMEEREER 2 R
TEE518 253,850 TEBEEREESD -

;Qfﬂ%ﬂé%)ﬁééiﬁ%ﬁiﬁ

H

2021 2020
$ $
267,810,480 311,990,100

LRBREEDERBAAEBEMAREZE
BEE  REASESZESWREENHM
2EKEERALBERELERE -

FE W RR X
2021 2020
$ $
18,750,372 18,058,170
(2,010,970) (1,879,735)
16,739,402 16,178,435

EEHIR30OX - E2 X 8 S H I BRKRES
ERERBGRIE - I 2 HIE S EEE I A
HEERREERE - SREEEETHE
Blaiise: - R R B EWEZFHEBRET
B EERIR R E IR EEEE - BUER
RETEHE




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

At 1 January M1ALAH
Impairment losses, net (note 6) REEIEF 58 (M7t 6)
At 31 December M®12A31H

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. The Board measures loss allowance
on financial assets based on the past loss experience, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking information at
the end of each reporting period.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Board’s accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

Current

B &R

Expected credit loss rate HEHEEEEX 0.03%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) 4 BE & (57T) 16,272,809
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEHR(= & 518 (B T) 4,284

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bl 35 ¥h 2 bl 5

(LAETTIIR)

FEUPRFORE < B R B R =BT

2021 2020

$ $

1,879,735 1,958,114
131,235 (78,379)
2,010,970 1,879,735
HeZBeRBSR2PEBEEEHE (KR

RBERETE) 2 BT ERBRRZE
BEE o REBEHR R EEREA
EEBRLR  BATMRARAREENTTES
BMEEZ RS -

TXEIIFAREEESHESZ SRR
R FTHE R EERREFR

20214 12H31H

Past due
B

Less than 3 months Over
3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
PR3EA 3MAELFE 15 E et
0.2% 40.6% 100.0% 10.7%
412,304 100,303 1,964,956 18,750,372
1,006 40,724 1,964,956 2,010,970
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

As at 31 December 2020

R 202012 A31H

Past due
g
Less than 3 months Over

Current 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total

B SPR3M@EA 3EAZELF 1F5FBE et

Expected credit loss rate JEHAz EEIEXR — 0.5% 93.1% 95.0% 10.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$) #2BEmE (&7T) 15,669,177 411,700 31,325 1,945,968 18,058,170
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEER(ZE k518 (BT) — 1,900 29,165 1,848,670 1,879,735
At the end of the reporting period, the Board had certain RREHR EeZB8gFETREEETF

concentrations of credit risk as 6% (2020: 18%) and 28%
(2020: 46%) of the Board’s accounts receivable were due
from the Board’s largest debtor and five largest debtors,
respectively.

TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
OF MORE THAN THREE MONTHS

15.

Time deposits with original maturity of

more than three months FK

Less: Portion classified as non-current B BB AIERBEE

assets

Current portion mENER D

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rate on time
deposits with original maturity of more than three months
was 0.6% (2020: 1.2%) per annum. These deposits have an
average maturity of 343 days (2020: 222 days).

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16.
Cash and bank balances BE RIBITRES
Time deposits TEBATF R
Less: Time deposits with original W REBB=EA%
maturity of more than three 258 2 7E BRI
months (note 15) (Mf7£15)
~ Cash and'cash equivalents ﬁé%{%%
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15.

EEE@%@E1H?§§'J,HHZE,HH

E FRRESCZESRKER 6%
(20204 : 18%) K 28% (20204 : 46%)
PRBERESCEESZHEABEHFARAKX
EBA o

REBB=EARIH zEH
2

2021 2020

2,405,119,473 2,383,273,580

(457,794,356) —

1,947,325,117 2,383,273,580
MN2021% 128318 REBB=1EA
BEBZEHERZERFNEE50.6%
(2020F : 1.2%) - ZEHFRZFHEEE
343K (20204 : 222K) °

RERRAEEEY
2021 2020
$ $
37,942,609 43,482,975
2,405,119,473  2,383,273,580
2,443,062,082  2,426,756,555

(2,405,119,473) (2,383,273,580)

37,942,609

43,482,975




17.

18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8] 55 ¥h 2% Bl 51

(LAETTIIR)

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 17. EsrRER A ESFIE
2021 2020
$ $
Accruals FEEtER 1B 5,693,913 3,351,498
Other payables H b e I8 3,794 31,151
Provision for unutilised annual leave RE A F R 830,613 752,976
Provision for litigation claim SRR R B 3,829,481 3,829,481
10,357,801 7,965,106

Provision for litigation claim was made for a court case which
was still in progress at the end of the reporting period. The
provision of $3,829,481 (2020: $3,829,481) refers to
the damage amount claimed by a patient in respect of his
disability resulting from pneumoconiosis.

PR BERRNERER Y —FHRER
TEEHRER AR R - B153,829,481 T
(20204 : 3,829,481 7%) Jh— %% A E b
BIRERMERGEMEHZHESH -

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 18. REIlRK & 1E
2021 2020
$ $
At 1 January ®R1A1H 107,211 120,000
Reversal during the year FREE (310) (12,789)
At 31 December MW12A31H 106,901 107,211

The provision for long service payments is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the Board’s employees from their service to the
Board to the end of the reporting period less any amount that
would be expected to be met by the vested benefits in the
retirement benefit scheme at the end of the reporting period.

RHRBEBBEIREHESZESESR
EREHREERAESZBSRHRBEMC
BREX 2 A LS SR A 3R OR TR A 5 BRI
RIRENG BTSRRI N Z EREE)
TR Z R ESD

MERNEFRHEESZES 2021 FF1K

57



TEAIR)

7

(A

::

£
(1]

k2% b

+
¥

5

ij

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

289892667 19209701 ¥96'972'1¢ 797'€GY 628'€16 6C2LE 8T PLLTHS 0T 8¥6'6L2'1€6 BIEH 211000 1207 2quia2q T€ Iy

aWoou anisuaygIduod
BYERYI Y JoU70 YNy} anen e} Je pajeudisap

60£'GEC'6 60£'G€2'6

pac KA A SJuasanul fnba Uo ures anjen e
- - - - (L96'T¥E) (Gre'8p0'e)  (09'£12'T) 200'809' FERLLE Spun} oy} pasijsues}
ZEAETZTEEEBE  sjunowe Joj Juatuisnipe LoRealjisseloay
- - - - (996'918'7¢)  (9yS'8v0'€2)  (096'L12'E) 2L0'€80'%5 X3! 85Uado J0sl0lg
- - - (e€8'€2) - - - £68'c2e (0T%2)
SEIEAE (01 2lou) Sjasse qi3uequr o Uorjesiowy
- - (81602 - - - - 816'50L (624H) 24 (6 a1ou) Uoneidaideq
HRHEEREVE :8)esuadLL0d 0} pun} Pale|LLINA2R 0} JajSuel|
- - 016'69L - 996'918'c  9veBvO'Es  09G'LICE (286'298'75) R LR punJ pajenuun2e WO} JajSuel]
1010 — - - - - - 81€'010'%¥ CEEE Jeak 8Ly Joj snjding
G00'€00v6T  25h'See'T USTWITC 167119 96£'662'1 680241z YEE'6GLTT 114106788 HIHT£1200
HHIEH 21302020 1207 Menuer  Je pue 020 jaquasaq 1€ Iy
00'€0'0v6T  25h'see' USWITC 162119 9/'652'1 1680e'1e HEE'6SL'TI 114106788 BIEH 21502004 0207 #2quiaseq ¢
- 098'€6¢ - - - - - (058'¢52) aloou!
YEEEVTHE  8NSUsyIdwo0 Jaujo YSnaly) anjen Jiej je
YENVHZINEEHE  paleusisep sjuawsanul fnbs Jo esodsip
NALE AR BT alj} uodn 8MIaSaJ anfen Jie} Jo Jajsuel]
(86/'66087)  (86L'660%8Y)  — - - - - - aL0oul BNSUaYRIdU0d
EEELAE S k] JU30 YSnoiy) anjen ey Je pajeudisap
s (KA I A Sjustujsanul fynbs uo ssoj anjen Jle
- - - - (661'969'C)  (BI€'616) (9€1'229) £19'2€2' ERRLE Spun} oy} palijsues}
ZTAETZTEEEEE  sjunowe Joj Juatuisnipe LoRedlyisselody
- - - - (6S1'621'91)  (BI€%616%02)  (£€1229°7) 719'0/9'6¢ X! asuaded Joaloig
- - - (£€0'712) - - - £E0'71C wEIvAE sJasse a|qiBUe)ul Jo Uoljesiouy
- - (LLT'0ET'T) - - - - LLT'0ET'T g4 Lorjeloeidag
HENTEEEVE :53]esUadLi0d 0} punj paje|nLLINade 0} JajSuei]
- - 016'¢/1 00v'8L 65162191 SIE6IE0C L1709 (725'226'6€) R puny PejeInLUNAde Lol Jojsuel]
AN - - - - - 89Y'GHT v VR Jeak 8Ly Joj snjding
GEE'/L6'¥8T  00V'TLO6Y  BECBETTC  0E6TI8 456'156'9 GGT'0ve'ec  OLp'T8E'el  981'08T08LT BTH 140200 0207 kenuer 1y
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
(2 (CIEH) ((PEH) (O1EH) (@) (BIEH)
((4) @10u) ((8) a0u) ((p) 330u) ((2) a1ou) ((a) 830u) ((e) @10u)
L% Y85y Y8y IEYLHE  TEEY TEYY TEH 3 H
|ejoL 3Masal EIVEL) puny swajsks puny puny punj puny
UENTIREIT] (eyde Jajndwoy uore|igeyy TETEIR [oIeasay paje|nwnady
: . (o
HENTE 61 S3AAY3S3Y ANV SANNS "6T1

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board Annual Report 2021

58



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

Research fund
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing
research projects.

Prevention fund

A prevention fund has been set aside to finance education
and publicity programs aiming at reminding workers and
their families to the occupational hazard, and stressing the
importance of prevention.

Rehabilitation fund

A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance
rehabilitation programs which provide holistic rehabilitation
care to patients.

Computer systems fund
A computer systems fund has been set aside to finance
development for various systems.

Capital reserve

A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation charged is
compensated by a transfer from this reserve each year.

Investment reserve

Investment reserve represents the accumulated net change
in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=
5
B

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

8] 55 ¥h 2% Bl 51

(LAETTIIR)

MEES
BHMRES AABETH ZHRER -

ARES
BHEEHESNEABBEREEED  §
ERETREERARBXEEERR - L8
SEREED e BRI -

EEES
BHERESEDERTY  ARAR
EINCESE

EMAGES
BHEREASRESNEDBRRZERR -

BERHE

BOEARBIELABENE  HELRE
ZE%  WEFARARBRFARER
ERx -

RERE
RERERZAABE AR M2 A RS
RERMEEZRBANBEZLEFE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8] 55 ¥6 2% MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

20. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  20. IR&RERME=

60

(a) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to () FERAKREEEELE S
cash generated from operations 2 $BR
Notes 2021 2020
BisE $ $
Surplus for the year FERBH 44,010,318 144,145,468
Adjustments for: BTHIIEE (EH A%
Depreciation e 9 705,518 1,130,177
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 10 223,833 214,033
Amortisation of discounts of debt RN AT E 2
investments at amortised costs BRIREZITE
By (3,591) (17,760)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)  fEMEEZRE,
of accounts receivable CRuERE) 14 131,235 (78,379)
Interest income FEWA (17,609,573) (47,363,003)
Dividend income f& BN (14,549,203) (14,859,303)
Fair value loss/(gain) on equity EBAAEERABE
investments at fair value through ZRARIEE
profit or loss, net ARBEBE
(Yezs ) 58 44,179,620 (1,466,325)
57,088,157 81,704,908
Decrease/(increase) in accounts PR BRFUR > (32 hn)
receivable (692,202) 10,267,642
Decrease in prepayments and deposits T8 I8 kiR & 9,549 145,064
Decrease in advance payment for X RESRHD
compensation — 297,190
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEETFIE K H Ath fE 1~
other payables SRIFE I, CRiD) 2,392,695 (1,380,679)
Decrease in provision for long service KHIRRIES &R
payments (310) (12,789)
Cash generated from operations SEEECRS 58,797,889 91,021,336

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the Board received a scrip dividend
of $571,527 (2020: $566,567) from listed equity

investments.
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(b) EXIFRERS

FA ESZBFRBNAEKKRE

571,52775(2020% :

566,5677T) °




21.

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Board was contingently
liable for compensations payable on 41 (2020: 18) re-
assessment applications under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance which have not yet
been approved by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board. In the
opinion of the Board members, the financial effect of the re-
assessment applications cannot be reliably measured.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The financial assets of the Board comprise (i) financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which are categorised
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
mandatorily designated as such; (ii) equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which are categorised as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income; and (iii) accounts receivable,
interest receivables, deposits, debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and cash and cash equivalents, which are categorised
as financial assets at amortised cost. The carrying amount of
deposits is $64,143 (2020: $65,873). The carrying amounts
of other financial assets are shown on the statement of
financial position.

The financial liability of the Board comprise financial
liabilities included in accruals and other payables categorised
as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of financial liabilities included in accruals and other payables
is $5,697,707 (2020: $3,382,649).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21.

22.

Bl 35 ¥h 2 bl 5

(LAETTIIR)

HAREE
RBEMA B ZARRARILD

(20204 - 1817 ) iR fb BB 3R 71 & Jm M
2P (F1E) 1&BI R R I A5 B EE 1R T & i 3
FESRTEZBHEBIANHE L2 E
BRA  BHRBZUBTEELN]

o

i
bl

A

oo
2 m

fn XA

Ay
B

BRERE S 2EMTR

ESTEGVORMEERE)IRANEE
AABSCEREE  DBEARANEBER
ABmz&EE—AFIMILIETE (i)
EERANBEFAEMEE WS Z BAE
& pEARANBENAREMEAREZ
SEEE - R(i)BUEER - BUKFE - &
K IREER AR EHIRE C REEB
—EARINBzEAFRARBRE RS
BY - B ARBENATEZSRE
E-EeZREERG4,1437T(2020F ¢
65,873 7T) ° Hih & EhE E 2 BREES N
AR o

ESZEQ VBB ERIET ABRER
HibEMEZ B AE - DEARBHEK
KB 2B AE o sT ABRTHIE R E M
NREzHBEECREERS697,707
JL(20204F : 3,382,6497T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

62

23. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Board’s financial assets and financial liability
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts
receivable, interest receivables, deposits, the current
portion of an unlisted bond included in debt investments
at amortised cost, the current portion of time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months and cash and
cash equivalents approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the non-current portion of time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and unlisted
bond included in debt investments at amortised cost has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instrument with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of these
financial assets approximated to their fair values because the
effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of listed equity and fund investments are
based on quoted market prices.
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23. TR ITAEZAREBERD

]

\

EEH

RBEMR RS EGZERMEERMT
BEZREAEREAREERS

CREENBBEZANBENZTARER
R CRATERHERIN) ERRFT
ZRAIRG TR -

BEECIEHATE - BREKERR - BUYA
B R RE R B 2 AR E T
EWEFZREE N - REBB={EA%E
2 ERFERARRE MRS EBY 2 AR
EEHEARERERS  TEHRZEFTLA
ZEIHIH &

REHRAGTEZERRETREBE =
HEREEZ E M FANIE L ESFZIER
B 2 AR EETERBEMRIRE
MR ERE - AATREAEAFEAU
K FERRRSTFHZ TARKAA
ZHE RBERR - ZEMEENREE
BEEEAAABEIRERFBENTELTE
* o

EHRARESREZ AR BEDETSH
fEEtH -




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Arf 55 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

Fair value hierarchy NABEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRERESZES T AR EER
hierarchy of the Board’s financial instruments: BE&:

Assets measured at fair value BANEERECEE

As at 31 December 2021 M2021F 12H31H

Fair value measurement using
FERAUTEAHEZ AABETE

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EATEE BEAFTHE
ERMISHRE BARE BARE

(E—#%) (BB=#) (=) met
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated & AiE AR BEA
at fair value through other Hip2EWR S BAEE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments THRAKRE 149,081,411 — — 149,081,411
Financial assets at fair BRANBEFABRZ
value through profit or loss TREE 267,810,480 — — 267,810,480
416,891,891 — — 416,891,891
v
N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Arf 5 ¥ 2% Pl 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

As at 31 December 2020

202012 A31H

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTHARBZ A AEETE

Quoted prices

Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTHE EXTUER
SERT G ME WARE WARE
(B—#) (B=#) (B=#) et
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated f&F Al AR BETAEM
at fair value through other 2EWECRERE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments FHRAIEE 139,274,575 — — 139,274,575
Financial assets at fair BARBERABRELZ
value through profit or loss CREE 311,990,100 — — 311,990,100
451,264,675 — — 451,264,675

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2020: Nil).

Liabilities measured at fair value
The Board did not have any financial liability measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
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The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, equity and fund price risk and
interest rate risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Board is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and cash
and bank balances.

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected levy
income. The credit risk on debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and cash and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are corporations and banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings agencies.
Accordingly, the Board members are of the opinion that the
Board’s activities are not exposed to significant credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Board’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Board, which comprise interest receivables,
deposits, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and cash
and cash equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty,
the Board’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. These financial assets of
the Board are classified within stage 1 for measurements of
ECLs.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

ESZBeVvemTAMELZI2ARE
EERR  RBELER  BRAREZER
[ A R R R [\ o B IR TR R 2 BRR
E2ZEaR:4t - AN T3 -

EERR

HEeZ B2 EERRTEREBURR -
REBERAG B ZEBKRE  REEBB=
RREBNZ EFRIANIRE MIRTTHER

HeZEEOHIEERR - BEEEREREIE
RMEEEERR - ERRBHKAE
ZEBRE REBB=EARKRIHZEHR
TFRIARIRE RIRTTHEER - IR ZHFR
EERTREBE TRERENR IMBLR
17 MUEERBAR - Bt - Z22Z8€
ZBRR R2RBeEDER . EERR
YREKX -

FHESZESMERRERKERZEE
R\l 2 —F EBIE - RUBRKME
1438 -

ERKREESZEGEMEREE (BHEE
WHE - RE  HEHEKAFTEZEBR
& R =EARIHZ ERMERIAR
ReRASEEY) 2 EERR  EE2Z8
SR EERRIKERHHTELND
MEARBBRENZETAZREE - &
SR EeREeREESARYEEER
AHEEREERA -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A ITHIIR)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Board, through its
Committee on Finance and Administration, has adopted a
prudent investment and treasury strategy so as to ensure

that it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Board’s financial liability as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year or repayable
on demand.

Equity and fund price risk

Equity and fund price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity and fund investments decrease as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of underlying
individual securities. The Board is exposed to equity and
fund price risk arising from its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 12)
and financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 13) as at 31 December 2021. The Board’s listed equity
and fund investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange and are valued at closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The market equity index for the Hong Kong stock exchange,
at the close of nearest business trading day of the end of the
reporting period, and its respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

HEZRBECRRERERFERAMES
NiRITHESR - RS Z B RCBBE TMENR
THREZEERNEEZIRE MEHRE -
ERERHRSRNERBESHK

RESORTENFINLZEEZ BB
BERREHRZ BB S IR —FRIZ
BRMEE -

AR R B 5 ERER

BARESERERIERARESREZA
AREBERBRAESKTE AR ELESEE
HIRE S T B2 R - 102021412 A
31 E2REQEBRAHETRANE
BT AEMEERE 2 RAKE (FE12)
EREAREBEFABGZZSRIZE (T
13) ZBARESERER - EEZBEZ
EABRARESRERBBYIA LT - I
BERHRERRZ KT ERE

ERBOIRE AR R H B &R BAERE
R RIS N EFARSE
REEFAT -

31 December  High/low 31 December  High/low

2021 2021 2020 2020

2021 F 2021 & 2020 2020 &

12A31H =/1& 12A31H 5 /1K

Hong Kong — Hang Seng & — 184 5% 23,398 31,085/ 27,231 29,175/
Index 22,745 21,139
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAETTIIR)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to changes TRETRARESREERIAEBEIAZ
in the fair values of the equity and fund investments ARBELIERS% BB MEMTEE 2%
assuming a 5% change in fair values of the underlying PEBRFTARABBZEZIERT - 1RE
instruments with all other variables held constant and before HERSRERRCREE  HAAEEES 2
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the BRE - AT E - YRR AAEEE
end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis, AHMEEWNG 2 SRIEE - BEFZEHES
for the financial investments at fair value through other REDABEREITVE -

comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the
fair value reserve.

Change in
Carrying Change in funds and
amount of surplus for reserve®
investments the year HER
RERHE FREMBZEE FE225*
$ $ $
2021 2021 F
Investments listed in REEZ ETHIRE -
Hong Kong:
Equity investments BTERANBETTA
designated at fair value Hib2miiz s
through other R A&
comprehensive income 149,081,411 — 7,454,071
Financial investments at fair QAR BERAEZRZ
value through profit or loss SRIGE 267,810,480 13,390,524 —
2020 2020 F
Investments listed in REBZ FTHIRE -
Hong Kong:
Equity investments EERAABERTA
designated at fair value Hih2mles 2
through other [eieidey
comprehensive income 139,274,575 — 6,963,729
Financial investments at fair AR BEFAERZ
value through profit or loss SRS E 311,990,100 15,599,505 —
* Excluding accumulated fund * W REES
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

(LAETTIIR)

Interest rate risk

The Board is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets. The
value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. Bank balances, including time
deposits with original maturity of more than three months,
earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits
rates. Assuming the amount of bank balances, including time
deposits, outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 100 basis-point increase/
decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2021 and 2020
would have increased/decreased the Board’s surplus for the
year by $24,430,577 and $24,267,423, respectively. There
is no impact on funds and reserves except for accumulated
fund.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Board’s capital management
is to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future operations.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

Capital of the Board comprises its funds and reserves.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 20 June 2022.
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APPENDIX |
Bl &% —

Number of Confirmed New Cases in the Past Ten BRETFEHEZHEREF

Years
Total 8% *
751 (41) [130]
120
112
12
100 93
12
80 g 19
2 71 1
5 69 68 6
10
13 16 9
60 54 . 2 W81
6
7
4
40
68 56 43 b4 59 b2 88 67
20
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
’ Silicosis cases . Asbestosis cases . Mesothelioma cases . Asbestosis & Mesothelioma case
WinmER ARNERER B BER ARINERRERBER
Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction/quarry industry
FHH EREEREXRAWEZTAFMEEDL
85 86 87 85 90 91 83 83 84 86 76

Figures in parentheses () represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ] represents number of Mesothelioma
cases included in the total.
C OARBFREREBTARNEREE AR M IABFRREREEPRERBEE 2 AR -

*  One patient in 2019 and 2021 respectively were determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma

* DR NFR-TCFREEARERESRR R A AR ERRERE
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APPENDIX II
i 2%

Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2021
—EC-FREBRAEZHERNERREBRBRERI T

46

© 5059 AtEE+AKE
60-69 A+ EATHE

® 7079 ttz++h

@ 30 and above N\+ERRME

. Employed
PR

. Unemployed/retired
KEBIRIK

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis
Bx— Fie THEXIIERNRESE

Age group Number of cases Average age Average DOI(%)
FHHE A TERENTE

FHRAa Al BmAAE 15 6 iR EaDR

50-59 5 (1) [1] 57 19

A+ERTNK

60-69 46 (2) [5B] 65 19

ANTERT IR

70-79 35  (2) [10] 74 26

++EETNRK

80 and above 7 (2 [4] 86 46

N BRI =

Total 93 (7)* [20]* 69 23

B

#  Total number has included 7 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not
been determined.

tOBEERET RARARTERATIERENIZEEZIRTER -

One patient was determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma

¥ —RBEREDRRBE ORILERRERE -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First
Registration
BXR=— WMABRXELRZEEER

Employment Status Number of cases Percentage
MEER HmAAE Frit B 5 &
Employed 19 [2] 20.4
TR

Unemployed/retired 74 (7)* [18]* 79.6
KEBIRIK

Total 93 (7)* [20]* 100.0
EEE

v

v

Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ]
represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
ORNEFRERBEFARNERBEZAL - M 1R FA RERAEFEREEE
PN

*  One patient was determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma

* —RBEREZSRRBEORNERKEKE
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed
in 2021
Bx= —T_—FAFXRHATZMERNER&ERBEEBRE TIEDHE

Length of employment

BT
Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
RE\ITE TET TEFUE HE
Construction Only 0 (0) 101 42 (1) [11 42 (1) [11
RegE%E—18
Construction & Quarry 0 (0) 10] 0 (0) 101 0 (0) 101
BEERAEE
Construction & Quarry and others 6 (3)* [31* 23 (1) [2] 29 (4)* [51*
B AR NREMITE
Sub-total 6 3)* [3I* 65 (2) [3] 71 (5)* [61*
EIE/F
Other industries
HAth172
Ship manufacturing/sailoring 0 (0) [0] 6 (1) 5] 6 (1) [5]
MERE 1T
Brick making/Marble grinding/Stone
crushing 0 (0) 0] 3 (0) 0] 3 (0) [01]
R ERIEHA
Machine repairing/Metal work 0 (0) [0] 2 (1) [11 2 (1) [11
HiisE RS TR
Jade/gem stone polishing 0 (0) 10] 1 (0) 101 1 (0) [0]
XA/ ERIE
Rubber/Plastic product manufacturing 0 (0) [0] 1 (0) [1] 1 (0) [1]
BB ERE MBS
Others 2 (0) [1] 7 (0) [6] 9 0) [7]
Hth
Sub-total 2 (0) [11] 20 (2) [13] 22 (2) [14]
EI8/F
Total 8 (3)" [41* 85 (4) [16] 93 (7)* [20]*
FEE
Notes:

— Figures in parentheses () represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases
included in the total.

— Among the 93 cases under study, 71 (76.3%) have worked in the construction industry. Only 22 (23.7%) have had

employment connection with neither the construction nor quarry industry.

One patient was determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma.

*

<
II:I'I-IF

ORBEFAEREETARNEREEZIAE  MIARFRRERBEHERBIEZ AL -
— MEO3BEBER - 71 A(76.3%) BRBEE T RE22 A(23.7%) RANBERLABEETE
* —RBEREIRRIEARLERRENRE -
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APPENDIX I
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Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma
(Compensatlon) Ordinance as at 31 December 2021

N —=—

Total

167

5-20
25-40
45-60
65-80
85-100

Total
1 245

5-20
25-40
45-60

65-80
85-100

—F+ A=+ - BMBRTER R ERE (FHE) RADBESH o

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”

Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [BERI"RASZHESZEA#HESESN
Degree of incapacity Total Average
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) of case(s) payment month per case
BB ZEATE SAMERL SASAYY
REIRERSR BmAAE Xii BEzHEEHE
($) ($)
5-20 99 587,970 5,939
25-40 46 430,030 9,348
45-60 16 219,195 13,700
65-80 3 35,145 11,715
85-100 3 76,015 25,338
Total 167 1,348,355 8,074
R
In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 2 cases at $5,750 per

case per month.

BREARATRIMEREB AR T ARt [ KR mamE]

“0ld case” includes those patients who have received a lump-sum compensation before

*

the ordinance was amended in 1993.

* [BEER] R 1993 F S A BB [ —F6 | MEMRAGER -

Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Patients

Bx_— [FERI*"RASZHESZEAMESESN
Degree of incapacity Total Average of
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number of monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) case(s) payment month per case
RMEAZEARIHE BRAWE 8BABAYY
BEIBRERSR BmAAR B ESzHEEESHE
($) ($)
5-20 1002 8,566,220 8,549
25-40 147 2,226,728 15,148
45-60 59 1,252,790 21,234
65-80 27 752,115 27,856
85-100 10 287,410 28,741
Total 1245 13,085,263 10,510

In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 11 cases at $5,750 per

case per month.

AL BRAFRINEREART AR ITL [ 2 RREHEOME] -

#  “New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-sum compensation before.

*OEER] AIRER [ —F6 ] fENRARER -
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Table 3: Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma

(Compensation) Ordinance

APPENDIX 1l

i 2% —

BR= <(FERNER&EREHE) K< LB
Compensation item Expenses Expenses Total Expenses
incurred from incurred from incurred from
1 Jan to 1 Jan to 9 Jul 1993 to
31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2021
HEEE —E--F “BIEF —AN=F
—HA—RBZ —RB—BA% tAAAZE
+=BA=+—H +=A=+—H —E-—-F
ZXH ZXH  +=A=+—H
2R
($) ($) ($)
Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both) 33,669,630 20,941,797 558,343,791
fib BB IR & m S R S TR (SRR )
SIBOLTHHE
Compensation for bereavement 2,101,230 1,223,485 19,135,996
PEET ZENME
Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities 174,956,777 172,764,492 3,748,680,591
EARTVERE N - KA - B MR R BN E AME
Compensation for incapacity prior to date of diagnosis 3,871,963 4,120,750 58,325,840
FI18 B EART R R TYERE v
Compensation for care and attention 984,907 1,050,148 19,421,436
IR N BB T A E
Funeral expenses 6,506,873 5,083,566 80,278,757
RsE
Medical expenses 3,067,606 2,566,017 43,644,623
BRE
Expenses for medical appliances 1,314,559 1,350,020 27,524,522
BEEERR
Total 226,473,545 209,100,275 4,555,355,556
EEY
y v
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APPENDIX IV
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Profile of All Cases Receiving Compensation as at 31 December 2021
R-BZ—F+ZA=1+—HEEEARNHERAZGTER

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients
Bx— [EBEXR|mAZFTER

Average degree of

Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
Fi98e K THERE

F A8 5l BmAAH 1 F iR BEASE
60-69 14 66 33
ANTEXRTR
70-79 89 75 24
++EE+ AR

® 6069 ~+z~+hz  80andabove 64 85 22
N+BERIA E

® 7079 ++z++hE
Total 167 78 24
. 80 and above )H—ﬁ&%i@ﬂ

Table 2: Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and

Mesothelioma Patients
Bx= [#ER]HAZHTER

Average degree of

Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FI9E AR TERE D
F i Bl mAAE FI9FiR BEHIR
30-39 1 [1] 31 100
=+E=1+NBK
40-49 4 [3] 46 33
P+ZE+ Bk
50-59 27 [3] 56 20
A+ER TR
60-69 562 [7] 65 16
NTERT IR
© 3039 =tz=tn# 70-79 469 (7] 74 16
40-49 W+Z=M+ 5% R
©® 50-59 A+EE+AE 80 and above 182 [2] 85 19
@ o069 ~tEithm  [ATERAE .
. 70-79 43 b+ :;);I 1245 [23] 71 17
@ 80and above N HEEME
Note:
Figures in brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
5

[ ARFRERBEPERBREZ AL -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

APPENDIX V
B £

(LAETTIIR)

hERBRE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B BT ZTE-hF ZE-N\F =ET—tF
($'000)
Income A
Levies (=6 365,137 358,404 336,279 367,552 370,350
Interest .8 17,609 47,363 55,974 42,349 34,311
Others HA A 14,916* 15,149 17,377 52,366 16,999
Fair value gain on financial NARBEAERS
assets (Tracker Fund) REEZARE
e
(BEED) — 1,466 15,568 — —
Total income ECLON 397,662 422,382 425,198 462,267 421,660
Expenditure X
Compensation wHE 226,473 209,100 212,997 213,464 204,407
Project expenses EEFEY 54,083 39,671 48,671 43,955 41,327
Staff, administrative and other BB THERK
expenses HiA% 27,241 27,423 27,218 30,194 24,331
Depreciation/Amortisation e HiH 929 1,344 1,244 973 1,014
Capital expenditure BRRAX 746 698 633 715 959
Exchange loss/Fair value loss on  EHEE/ARR
financial assets EEARERE
(Tracker Fund) EZAnEE
EE(BEES) 44,180 — — 19,526 —
Total expenditure my 353,652 278,236 290,763 308,827 272,038
Surplus for the year REERE 44,010 144,146 134,435 153,440 149,622
Transfer from capital reserve HERGEERL 929 1,344 1,243 7,681 1,014
Transfer from investment reserve I &EEEREH — — — 39,585 —
Accumulated fund brought FFERE
forward 2,882,502 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536 2,218,517
2,927,441 2,875,770 2,719,748 2,574,142 2,369,153
Transfer to project funds/ BNERES
computer systems BRAGES/
fund/capital reserve/ BAGRE/
investment reserve RERKE (54,853) (40,176) (49,795) (45,176) (40,779)
Transfer from project funds to BEBE SR
compensate project E#HFRAX
expenses 58,691 46,908 60,327 55,104 45,162
Accumulated fund carried BIFECEE
forward S 2,931,279 2,882,502 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536
* Others include dividend income from listed securities amounting to $14,549,203, Ex-gratia Fund administration charge
received of $138,429, penalty of $224,425 on late payments of levies and sundry income of $3,734.
* Hip W A BIERE ETEHFFER S 14,549,203 & - RERFBSIKREZTIE A 138,429 7T « FEMBEGKFTKRE Z E13% 224,425 7T &%

FEBUA 3,734 T ©
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